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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
The Philodrill Corporation
8th Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum
125 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Philodrill Corporation and Subsidiary
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023
and 2022, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2023 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).  Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.  These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  For the matters below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matters is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to this matter.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.  The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

 Tel: (632) 8891 0307
Fax: (632) 8819 0872
ey.com/ph

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Recoverability of Deferred Oil and Gas Exploration Costs

As at December 31, 2023, the carrying value of the Group’s deferred oil and gas exploration costs
amounted to P=563.1 million, net of allowance for unrecoverable deferred oil and gas exploration costs
amounting to P=334.9 million.  These deferred exploration costs pertain to the expenditures incurred in the
exploration stage of the Group’s oil and gas assets.  Under PFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources, these deferred oil and gas exploration costs shall be assessed for impairment when
facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts exceed the recoverable amounts.  The ability of
the Group to recover its deferred oil and gas exploration costs would depend on the commercial viability
of the oil and gas reserves.

We considered this as a key audit matter because of the materiality of the amount involved, and the
material management judgment required in assessing whether there is any indication of impairment.

The Group’s disclosures about deferred oil and gas exploration costs are included in Notes 3 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Audit Response

We obtained management’s assessment on whether there is any indication that deferred oil and gas
exploration costs may be impaired or that a previously recognized impairment loss may have decreased.
We reviewed the summary of the status of each exploration project as at December 31, 2023.  We
inspected the licenses/permits of each exploration project to determine that the period for which the
Group has the right to explore in the specific area has not expired, will not expire in the near future, and
will be renewed accordingly.  We also inquired about the existing concession areas that are expected to be
abandoned or any exploration activities that are planned to be discontinued in those areas.  For those
concession areas where impairment indicators are present, we obtained the prospective financial
information for the projects.  We reviewed the underlying assumptions used in each probability scenario
prepared by the management.  We involved our internal specialist in evaluating the methodologies and
the discount rate used.  We compared the key inputs and assumptions used, including forecasted oil and
gas prices, inflation rate, estimated volume of oil and gas reserves, capital expenditures, and production
and operating costs, against the historical performance of similar projects and other relevant external and
internal data.  We tested the parameters used in the determination of the discount rate against market data.
We also reviewed the Group’s disclosures about those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive; specifically those that have the most significant effect on the
determination of the recoverable amount of deferred oil and gas exploration costs.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20 IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2023 but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.  The SEC Form 20 IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2023 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.  We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit.  We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and material audit findings, including any material deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters.  We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Editha V. Estacio.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Editha V. Estacio
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 91269
Tax Identification No. 178-486-845
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-094-2023, March 28, 2023, valid until March 27, 2026
PTR No. 10079934, January 5, 2024, Makati City

March 19, 2024

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2023 2022

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P=395,545,218 P=381,739,397
Receivables (Note 5) 237,494,304 241,643,133
Crude oil inventory (Note 6 and 7) 59,864,176 57,229,468
Other current assets 7,225,287 5,006,140
Total Current Assets 700,128,985 685,618,138

Noncurrent Assets
Investments in associates (Note 9) 903,592,135 899,335,155
Deferred oil and gas exploration costs (Notes 7 and 11) 563,138,013 604,283,335
Property and equipment (Note 8) 261,924,669 305,664,288
Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 20) 228,425,365 194,276,481
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVOCI) (Note 10) 56,629,640 69,632,048
Other noncurrent assets – 10,104,178
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,013,709,822 2,083,295,485

TOTAL ASSETS P=2,713,838,807 P=2,768,913,623

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 12) P=8,759,328 P=12,732,272
Dividends payable (Note 14) 33,126,610 33,126,610
Total Current Liabilities 41,885,938 45,858,882

Noncurrent Liabilities
Provisions for plug and abandonment costs (Notes 7 and 13) 30,748,952 34,366,961
Retirement benefit liability (Note 19) 1,188,368 1,822,139
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 31,937,320 36,189,100
Total Liabilities 73,823,258 82,047,982

Equity
Capital stock (Note 14) 1,743,479,943 1,743,479,943
Paid-in capital from sale of treasury shares (Note 23) 1,624,012 1,624,012
Share in other comprehensive income of associates (Note 9) 55,925,308 55,497,116
Net unrealized loss on decline in value of financial assets at FVOCI

(Note 10) (54,017,010) (41,014,602)
Reserve for net remeasurement loss on retirement benefit liability (42,912,363) (42,514,811)
Retained earnings 935,915,659 969,793,983
Total Equity 2,640,015,549 2,686,865,641

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P=2,713,838,807 P=2,768,913,623

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2023 2022 2021

SHARE IN PETROLEUM REVENUE (Note 7) P=203,591,907 P=237,488,580 P=207,126,666

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Share in costs and operating expenses (Notes 7 and 17) 138,678,431 105,403,947 139,477,198
General and administrative expenses (Note 18) 56,200,188 64,922,351 60,841,195
Depletion expense (Notes 7 and 8) 52,675,739 48,261,960 51,282,027

247,554,358 218,588,258 251,600,420

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Provision for impairment losses on:

Deferred oil and gas exploration costs (Note 11) (57,302,287) (423,754,823) –
Investment in associate (Note 9) (4,173,138) – –

Interest income (Notes 4 and 16) 26,927,701 15,705,047 12,304,629
Share in net income of associates (Note 9) 13,323,123 33,162,913 38,045,728
Interest expense (Notes 13 and 19) (2,053,168) (2,578,786) (2,236,159)
Dividend income (Note 10) 1,288,859 1,263,730 1,255,448
Foreign exchange gains - net (Note 7) 757,610 40,613,540 16,507,842
Gain on sale of investment (Note 10) – – 4,542,611
Others - net (721,116) (3,420,889) (115,068)

(21,952,416) (339,009,268) 70,305,031

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (65,914,867) (320,108,946) 25,831,277

(PROVISION FOR) BENEFIT FROM
INCOME TAX (Note 20)

Current (1,979,824) (927,221) (679,664)
Deferred 34,016,367 (18,297,387) 11,173,300

32,036,543 (19,224,608) 10,493,636

NET INCOME (LOSS) (P=33,878,324) (P=339,333,554) P=36,324,913

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Note 15)
Basic (P=0.0002) (P=0.0018) P=0.0002

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2023 2022 2021

NET INCOME (LOSS) (P=33,878,324) (P=339,333,554) P=36,324,913

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods:
Unrealized gains (losses) on financial assets at FVOCI

(Note 10) (13,002,408) (12,379,543) 3,874,565
Share in other comprehensive income (loss) of

associates (Note 9) 428,192 29,016,581 (4,984,909)
Remeasurement gains (loss) on retirement benefit

liability (Note 19) (530,069) (5,521,484) 4,510,162
Income tax effects 132,517 1,380,371 (1,353,049)

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) (12,971,768) 12,495,925 2,046,769

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (P=46,850,092) (P=326,837,629) P=38,371,682

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, 2022 AND 2021

Capital Stock
(Note 14)

Paid-in Capital
from Sale of

Treasury Shares

Share in Other
 Comprehensive

Income (Loss)
of Associates

(Note 9)

Net Unrealized
Income (Loss) on

Increase
(Decline) in

 Value of
 Financial Assets

 at FVOCI
(Note 10)

Reserve for Net
Remeasurement

Income (Loss) on
Retirement

Benefit Liability
(Note 19)

Retained
Earnings Total

Balances at January 1, 2021 P=1,743,479,943 P=1,624,012 P=31,465,444 (P=32,509,624) (P=41,530,811) P=1,272,802,624 P=2,975,331,588
Net income – – – – – 36,324,913 36,324,913
Other comprehensive income (loss) – – (4,984,909) 3,874,565 3,157,113 – 2,046,769
Total comprehensive income (loss) ‒ ‒ (4,984,909) 3,874,565 3,157,113 36,324,913 38,371,682

Balances at December 31, 2021 P=1,743,479,943 P=1,624,012 P=26,480,535 (P=28,635,059) (P=38,373,698) P=1,309,127,537 P=3,013,703,270

Net loss P=– P=– P=– P=– P=– (P=339,333,554) (P=339,333,554)
Other comprehensive income (loss) – – 29,016,581 (12,379,543) (4,141,113) – 12,495,925
Total comprehensive income (loss) ‒ ‒ 29,016,581 (12,379,543) (4,141,113) (339,333,554) (326,837,629)

Balances at December 31, 2022 P=1,743,479,943 P=1,624,012 P=55,497,116 (P=41,014,602) (P=42,514,811) P=969,793,983 P=2,686,865,641

Net loss (P=33,878,324) (P=33,878,324)
Other comprehensive income (loss) P=428,192 (P=13,002,408) (P=397,552) (12,971,768)
Total comprehensive income (loss) ‒ ‒ 428,192 (13,002,408) (397,552) (33,878,324) (46,850,092)

Balances at December 31, 2023 P=1,743,479,943 P=1,624,012 P=55,925,308 (P=54,017,010) (P=42,912,363) P=935,915,659 P=2,640,015,549

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2023 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS USED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Income (loss) before income tax (P=65,914,867) (P=320,108,946) P=25,831,277
Adjustments for:
 Provision for unrecoverable deferred oil and gas

exploration costs (Note 11) 57,302,287 423,754,823 –
Depletion and depreciation expense (Note 8) 53,441,168 49,216,836 54,428,709
Interest income (Notes 4 and 16) (26,927,701) (15,705,047) (12,304,629)
Share in net income of associates (Note 9) (13,323,123) (33,162,913) (38,045,728)

 Unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) - net
(Note 7) (757,610) (32,586,052) (16,507,842)

Impairment loss on investment in associates (Note 9) 4,173,138 – –
Accretion expense (Note 13) 2,000,342 1,915,669 1,448,014
Movement in retirement benefit liability (Note 19) (1,163,841) (20,028,470) (5,047,804)
Dividend income (Note 10) (1,288,859) (1,263,730) (1,255,448)
Gain on sale of investments (Note 10) – – (4,542,611)
Amortization of other deferred charges – 2,409,099 2,009,308

Working capital changes:
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables 4,148,829 56,033,505 (14,137,616)
Crude oil inventory (2,634,708) (35,141,470) (7,616,222)
Other current assets (2,219,147) (2,710,439) (87,666)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities (3,972,944) 7,503,844 (7,892,591)

Cash from operations 2,862,966 80,126,709 (23,720,849)
Income taxes paid, including creditable taxes applied (1,979,824) (957,886) (697,474)
Interest received 26,927,701 15,705,047 12,186,593
Dividends received 6,610,058 6,584,929 8,840,886
Decrease in other noncurrent assets 10,104,178 – –
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 44,525,079 101,458,799 (3,390,844)

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:

Deferred oil and gas exploration costs (Note 11) (16,156,965) (19,417,983) (20,886,697)
Property and equipment (Note 8) (9,701,549) (9,639,381) (2,109,921)

Proceeds from:
Disposal of other noncurrent assets – – 10,018,200
Sale of Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 10) – – 8,420,001

Cash flows used in investing activities (25,858,514) (29,057,364) (4,558,417)

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
2023 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of dividends (Note 14) P=– (P=2,605) (P=8,520)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 18,666,565 72,398,830 (7,957,781)

NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,860,744) 24,669,412 19,356,067

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 381,739,397 284,671,155 273,272,869

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR (Note 4) P=395,545,218 P=381,739,397 P=284,671,155

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Authorization for Issuance of Financial Statements

Corporate Information
The Philodrill Corporation (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 26, 1969.

The Parent Company and Philodrill Power Corp. (PPC, a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in
the Philippines) (collectively referred to as “the Group”) are primarily engaged in oil exploration and
production and the development, exploitation, and processing of energy resources.  PPC has not yet
started commercial operations.  The Parent Company is the ultimate parent company within the
Group.  The Parent Company is also an investment holding company with investments in financial
services and mining.  The Parent Company’s shares are listed and are currently traded at the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The registered business address of the Group is 8th Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum, 125 Pioneer St.,
Mandaluyong City.

The Parent Company, which is operating in two business segments, has two associates engaged in
financial services and one associate which has significant holdings in mineral resources in the
Philippines.  The Parent Company and its associates have no geographical segments as they were
incorporated and are operating within the Philippines.  Financial information regarding these
associates as at and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is presented in Note 9.

Group Information
The Parent Company’s subsidiary and associates are as follows:

Principal
activities Country of

incorporation

% equity/
Participating

interest
Subsidiary

Philodrill Power Corporation
(PPC)

Oil exploration and
production

Philippines 100.00

Associates (Note 9)
Atlas Consolidated Mining

Development Corporation
(ACMDC)

Mining Philippines 0.53

Penta Capital & Investment
Corporation (PCIC)

Finance, investments
and brokerage

Philippines 40.00

Penta Capital Holdings, Inc.
(PCHI)

*Indirect ownership through PCIC

Real estate, financial
and securities

transactions

Philippines 13.21
*11.82

Information on the Participating interests of the Group in Joint operations is provided in Note 7.

Authorization for Issuance of Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group as at December 31, 2023 and 2022
and for each of the three years ended December 31, 2023 were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on March 19, 2024.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Material Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for crude
oil inventory which is valued at net realizable value (NRV) and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) which are measured at fair value.  The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Parent Company’s and its subsidiary’s
functional and presentation currency, rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group as at
December 31 of each year.  The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same
reporting year as the Parent Company using consistent accounting policies.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of new standards effective in 2023.  The Group has not early adopted any standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

In 2023, the Parent Company adopted the amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures.  The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by:

- Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their “material” accounting policies, and

- Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to the Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance.

The Group applied the materiality guidance in its 2023 accounting policy disclosures

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a. Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost and
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them.  With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
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applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.  Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as determined under PFRS 15, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on
the principal amount outstanding.  This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at
an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows.  The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortized cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent Measurement
The Group’s financial assets include financial assets at amortized cost and FVOCI.

 Financial assets at amortized cost.  Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment.  Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
other financial assets under “Other current assets” and “Other noncurrent assets”.

 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments). Upon initial
recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.  Dividends are
recognized as other income in the consolidated statement of income when the right to payment
has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI.   Equity instruments
designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.   The Group elected to classify
irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial
position) when:

 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
 The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
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rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss.  ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.  The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.  Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

The Group considers a financial asset as past due when contractual payments are over 90 days.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

For financial assets such as advances to related parties, accrued interest, accounts with partners, ECLs
are recognized in two stages.  For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).  For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For cash and cash equivalents, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification.  The probability of
default and loss given defaults are publicly available and are considered to be low credit risk
investments.  It is the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECL.  The Group uses the ratings from reputable credit rating agencies
to determine whether the debt instrument has SICR and to estimate ECLs.

Determining the stage for impairment
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a SICR for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition.  The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.  This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and forward-looking analysis.  An exposure will migrate
through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates.  If, in a subsequent period, asset quality
improves and also reverses any previously assessed SICR since origination, then the loss allowance
measurement reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL.

Staging assessment
PFRS 9 establishes a three-stage approach for impairment of financial assets, based on whether there
has been SICR of a financial asset.  Three stages then determine the amount of impairment to be
recognized.

 Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not experienced SICR
since initial recognition.  Entities are required to recognize 12-month ECL for stage 1 financial
instruments.  In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, entities are required to
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compare the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date, with the
risk of default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.

 Stage 2 is comprised of all non-financial instruments which have experienced SICR since initial
recognition.  Entities are required to recognize lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial instruments.  In
subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that
there is no longer SICR since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to recognizing 12-
month ECL.

 Financial instruments are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with negative
impact on the estimated future cash flows of a financial instrument or portfolio of financial
instruments.  The ECL model requires that lifetime ECL be recognized for impaired financial
instruments, which is similar to the requirements under PAS 39 for impaired financial
instruments.

b. Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement
The Group’s financial liabilities at amortized cost include trade and other payables, advances from a
related party and lease liabilities.  The Group did not have financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortized cost which include interest-bearing loans
and borrowings, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.  Gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.  The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.  When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability.  The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial assets at FVOCI at fair value at each balance sheet date.  Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
 Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
 Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market prices at the close of business at the end of the reporting
period.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques.  Such techniques include comparison to similar investments for which market observable
prices exist and discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
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Crude Oil Inventory
Crude oil inventory is carried at NRV at the time of production.  NRV is the estimated selling price
less cost to sell.  The estimated selling price is the market value of crude oil inventory based on
Platt’s Dubai monthly average of the mid-day crude oil prices for the reporting month plus the
arithmetic average of Upper Zakkum and Arab Extra Light and is adjusted taking into account
fluctuations of price directly relating to events occurring after the end of the reporting period to the
extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Estimated cost to sell is the cost incurred necessary to complete the sale (e.g., freight charges,
transportation costs, etc.).

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depletion and depreciation, and any
impairment in value.

Wells, platforms, and other facilities are depleted on a field basis under the unit-of-production (UOP)
method based upon estimates of proved developed reserves except in the case of assets whose useful
life is shorter than the lifetime of the field, in which case the straight-line method is applied.  The
depletion base includes the exploration and development cost of producing oil fields.

Depreciation of property and equipment, other than wells, platforms, and other facilities, is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Category Number of Years
Office condominium units and improvements 20
Transportation equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 5
Office equipment 3

Investments in Associates
Associates are entities which the Group has significant influence.  Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.  Generally, investment holding at least 20% to 49% of the voting power
of an investee is presumed to have significant influence.  The considerations made in determining
significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The investment in associates are accounted using equity method.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is not individually tested for impairment.

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects the Group’s share of the
results of operations of the joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of the joint venture is shown on the face of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as part of operating profit and represents
profit or loss after tax and a non-controlling interest (NCI) in the subsidiaries of joint venture.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.
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Deferred Oil and Gas Exploration Costs
Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search for hydrocarbon resources, the determination
of technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of an identified resource.  Once the
legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with exploration are capitalized
under “Deferred oil and gas exploration costs” account.  The Group’s deferred oil and gas exploration
costs are specifically identified of each Service Contract (SC) area.  All oil and gas exploration costs
relating to each SC are deferred pending the determination of whether the contract area contains oil
and gas reserves in commercial quantities.  Capitalized expenditures include costs of license
acquisition, technical services and studies, exploration drilling and testing, and appropriate technical
and administrative expenses.  General overhead or costs incurred prior to having obtained the legal
rights to explore an area are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income when
incurred.

If no potentially commercial hydrocarbons are discovered, the deferred oil and gas exploration asset
is written off through the consolidated statement of income.  If extractable hydrocarbons are found
and, subject to further appraisal activity (e.g., the drilling of additional wells), it is probable that they
can be commercially developed, the costs continue to be carried under deferred oil and gas
exploration costs account while sufficient/continued progress is made in assessing the commerciality
of the hydrocarbons.  Costs directly associated with appraisal activity undertaken to determine the
size, characteristics and commercial potential of a reservoir following the initial discovery of
hydrocarbons, including the costs of appraisal wells where hydrocarbons were not found, are initially
capitalized as deferred oil and gas exploration costs.

All such capitalized costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review, as well as
review for indicators of impairment at least once a year.  This is to confirm the continued intent to
develop or otherwise extract value from the discovery.  When this is no longer the case, the costs are
written off through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

At the completion of the exploration phase, if technical feasibility is demonstrated and commercial
reserves are discovered, then, following the decision to continue into the development phase, the oil
and gas exploration costs relating to the SC, where oil and gas in commercial quantities are
discovered, is first assessed for impairment and (if required) any impairment loss is recognized, then
the remaining balance is transferred to “Wells, platforms, and other facilities” account shown under
the “Property and equipment” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred oil and gas exploration costs are assessed at each reporting period for possible indications of
impairment.  This is to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the
discovery.  When this is no longer the case or is considered as areas permanently abandoned, the
costs are written off through the consolidated statement of income.  Exploration areas are considered
permanently abandoned if the related permits of the exploration have expired and/or there are no
definite plans for further exploration and/or development.

When proved reserves of oil and gas are identified and development is sanctioned by management,
the relevant capitalized expenditure is first assessed for impairment and (if required) any impairment
loss is recognized, then the remaining balance is transferred to oil and gas properties.  Other than
license costs, no amortization is charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.  For
exchanges/swaps or parts of exchanges/swaps that involve only exploration and evaluation assets, the
exchange is accounted for at the carrying value of the asset given up and no gain or loss is
recognized.
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The recoverability of deferred oil and gas exploration costs is dependent upon the discovery of
economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Group to obtain necessary financing to complete
the development of reserves and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of
recoverable reserves.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from sale of petroleum is recognized at a point in time when the control of the goods has
transferred from the Consortium Operator of the joint arrangement to the customer, which is typically
upon delivery of the petroleum products to the customers.  Revenue is measured at amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group is entitled in exchange of those goods, which is the fair
value of the consideration received, excluding discounts and other sales taxes or duty.  The Group has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements.

Under the terms of the relevant joint operating agreements, the Group is entitled to its participating
share in the sale of petroleum products based on the Group’s participating interest.  The revenue
recognized from the sale of petroleum products pertains to the Group’s share in revenue from the
joint operations.  The revenue sharing is accounted for in accordance with PFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements.

Costs and Expenses
Share in Costs and Operating Expenses
Share in costs and operating expenses include production costs of SC-14 and transportation costs per
lifting and ending inventory which is recognized upon the allocation of the amounts mentioned by the
SC.  Allocation is done by the use of the Group’s participating interest in the SC.

Provision for P&A costs
The Group a P&A liability where it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is possible that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.  The nature of these restoration activities
includes dismantling and removing structures, rehabilitating wells and platforms, and dismantling
operating facilities.  The obligation generally arises when the asset is installed or the environment is
disturbed at the production location.  When the liability is initially recognized, the present value of
the estimated cost is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related oil assets.  Over
time, the discounted liability is increased for the change in present value based on the discount rates
that reflect current market assessments and the risks specific to the liability.  The periodic unwinding
of the discount is recognized in the consolidated statement of income under “Accretion expense”.
Additional disturbances or changes in P&A costs will be recognized as additions or charges to the
corresponding assets and P&A liability when they occur.

Where decommissioning is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the
time of closure, provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous decommissioning work at
each end of the reporting period and the cost is charged to the consolidated statement of income.  For
closed oil fields, changes to estimated costs are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement
of income.

The ultimate cost of decommissioning is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration
techniques or experience.  The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in
response to changes in oil reserves or production rates.  As a result, there could be material
adjustments to the provision for decommissioning, which would affect future financial results.
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Income Taxes
The contractor shall be liable each taxable year for Philippine income tax on income derived from its
petroleum operations under its contract of service, computed as provided:

Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority.  The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

 Gross Income
Gross income consists of:
- In respect of crude oil exported, the gross proceeds from the sale of crude oil at the posted

price;
- In respect of crude oil sold for consumption in the Philippines, the gross income shall consist

of the gross proceeds from the sale thereof at market price per barrel;
- In respect of natural gas and/or casinghead petroleum exported or sold for consumption in

the Philippines the gross income shall consist of the total quantity sold at the prevailing
market price thereof; and

- Such other income which are incidental to and/or arising from any petroleum operation.

 Deductions from gross income
In computing the taxable net income, the following are allowed as deductions:
- Filipino participation incentive; and
- Operating expenses reimbursed pursuant to Section 8 (1) of Presidential Decree No. 87,

which includes amortization and depreciation.  On behalf of the government, reimburse the
contractor for all operating expenses not exceeding seventy percent (70%) of the gross
proceeds from production in any year, Provided, that if in any year, the operating expenses
exceed seventy percent (70%) of gross proceeds from production, then the unrecovered
expenses shall be recovered from the operations of succeeding years.

Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each end of the reporting period and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to
be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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3. Material Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial information
and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.  The judgments, estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements.  Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at
those judgments and estimates to change.  The effects will be reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as they become reasonably determined.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

Determining and Classifying a Joint Arrangement
Judgment is required to determine when the Group has joint control over an arrangement, which
requires an assessment of the relevant activities and when the decisions in relation to those activities
require unanimous consent. The Group has determined that the relevant activities for its joint
arrangements are those relating to the operating and capital decisions of the arrangement.

Judgment is also required to classify a joint arrangement. Classifying the arrangement requires the
Group to assess their rights and obligations arising from the arrangement. Specifically, the Group
considers:

• The structure of the joint arrangement - whether it is structured through a separate vehicle
• When the arrangement is structured through a separate vehicle, the Group also considers the

rights and obligations arising from:
- The legal form of the separate vehicle
- The terms of the contractual arrangement
- Other facts and circumstances (when relevant)

This assessment often requires material judgment, and a different conclusion on joint control and also
whether the arrangement is a joint operation or a joint venture, may materially impact the accounting
treatment for each assessment.

The Group is a member in various joint arrangement operations in oil drilling.  These arrangements
are entered into with the Philippine Government through SCs.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s joint arrangements are in the form of joint operations
(see Note 7).

Determining Whether Significant Influence Exists
The Group has investments in associates.  These are shares purchased not for the purpose of trading.
The Group considers that it has a significant influence in Atlas Consolidated Mining and
Development (ACMDC), one of its the associates, as the Group is represented in the governance of
the associates.  In assessing whether significant influence still exists, the Group considered not only
its percentage ownership but other factors such as the Board seat representations it has in the
associate’s governing body.  Significant influence in the associate is also established by virtue of the
joint voting agreement entered.
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As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has significant influence over ACMDC based on the
joint voting agreement between the Ramos Group, which represents 31.85% interest (see Note 9).

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period are discussed below:

Assessing Recoverability of Deferred Oil and Gas Exploration Costs
The Group assesses impairment on deferred oil and gas exploration costs when facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount.
Deferred oil and gas exploration costs are reviewed for impairment whenever circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  Facts and circumstances that would
require an impairment assessment as set forth in PFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources, are as follows:

 The period for which the Group has the right to explore in the specific area has expired or will
expire in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed;

 Substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area is neither budgeted nor planned;

 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the entity has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area; and

 Sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed in full from successful development or by sale.

Key inputs and assumptions used in the assessment are as follows:

 Estimated reserves - which are based on oil resources reports based on the information gathered
from seismic and geological data, analyses and evaluation activities;

 Pre-tax discount rates of 14.9% in 2023 and 14.5% in 2022 – which represent the current market
assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the time value of money
and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow
estimates.  The discount rate calculation is derived from the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital (WACC), with appropriate adjustments made to reflect the risks specific to the CGU and
to determine pre-tax rate.  The WACC takes into account both debt and equity.  Adjustments to
discount rate are made to factor in the specific amount and timing of the future tax flows in order
to reflect a pre-tax discount rate; and

 Oil and gas prices of $75/bbl and $6.5/Mcf in 2023 and $80/bbl and $6.5/Mcf in 2022,
respectively – which are estimated with reference to external market forecasts of Brent crude
prices and US and Dutch liquefied natural gas prices.

The Group used a weighted average scenario probability in its calculation of value in use.

Information on the carrying values of deferred oil and gas exploration costs and allowance for
unrecoverable deferred oil and gas exploration costs is provided in Note 11.

Assessing Recoverability of Deferred Income Tax Assets
The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred income tax assets at each end of the reporting
period and is adjusted accordingly to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.  The Group’s
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assessment on the recognition of deferred income tax assets on deductible temporary differences is
based on the level and timing of forecasted taxable income of subsequent reporting periods.  The
forecast is based on past results and future expectations on revenues and expenses as well as future
tax planning strategies.

Information on the Parent Company’s unrecognized deferred income tax assets is provided in
Note 20.

Recoverability of Investments in Associates
The Group assesses impairment on investments in associates when facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount.  The factors that the Group
considers important, which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
 a downgrade of an associate’s credit rating or a decline in the fair value of the associate in

consideration of other available information
 significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment in which the associates operate

The Group determined that the significant decline in current fair market value of the associate is an
impairment indicator of its investment in ACMDC.

The Group determined the recoverable amount of its investment in ACMDC is its value-in-use
discounted using 11.86% pre-tax rate.  The Group recognized an impairment loss on its investment in
ACMDC amounting to P=4.2 million in 2023.

Information on the Group’s investment in associates and impairment loss is provided in Note 9.

Estimating Provision for Expected Credit Losses on Related party receivables
The Group maintains provision for impairment of related party receivables at a level considered
adequate to provide for uncollectible receivables.  ECL on receivables are unbiased probability-
weighted estimates of credit losses which are determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes
and taking into account past events, current conditions and assessment of future economic conditions.

The Group evaluates specific account of related parties who are unable to meet their financial
obligations.  In these cases, management uses judgment and assessment based on the best available
facts, including but not limited to, the customer’s payment history and the result of Group’s
follow-up action to recover overdue receivables.

Information on the Group’s related party receivables and ECL is provided in Note 5.

Estimating Oil and Gas Reserves
Hydrocarbon reserves are estimates of the amount of hydrocarbons that can be economically and
legally extracted from the Group’s oil properties.  The Group estimates its commercial reserves and
resources based on information compiled by appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological
and technical data on the size, depth, shape and grade of the hydrocarbon body and suitable
production techniques and recovery rates.  Commercial reserves are determined using estimates of oil
in place, recovery factors and future commodity prices, the latter having an impact on the total
amount of recoverable reserves and the proportion of the gross reserves which are attributable to the
host government under the terms of the Service Contracts.  Future development costs are estimated
using assumptions as to the number of wells required to produce the commercial reserves, the cost of
such wells and associated production facilities, and other capital costs.
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All proved and probable reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based
on new information, such as from development drilling and production activities or from changes in
economic factors, including product prices, contract terms or development plans.  Estimates of
reserves for undeveloped or partially developed fields are subject to greater uncertainty over their
future life than estimates of reserves for fields that are substantially developed and depleted.  As those
fields are further developed, new information may lead to revisions.

Oil and gas reserves estimate with a cut off period of December 31, 2023 was issued by the Group’s
competent person indicating a decrease in oil reserves estimate. The change in oil reserves resulted to
an increase in depletion costs by P=1.1 million.

Information on depletion expense of wells, platforms, and other facilities for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 is provided in Notes 7 and 8.

Estimating Provision for P&A Costs
Significant estimates and assumptions are made in determining the provision for P&A.  Factors
affecting the ultimate amount of liability include estimates of the extent and costs of P&A activities,
technological changes, regulatory changes, cost increases, and changes in discount and foreign
exchange rates. Those uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the
amounts currently provided. The provision at reporting date represents management’s best estimate of
the present value of the future decommissioning costs required.

The provision at the end of each reporting period represents management best estimate of the present
value of the future decommissioning cost required.  These estimates are reviewed regularly to take
into account any material changes to the assumptions.  However, actual P&A costs will ultimately
depend upon future market prices for the necessary decommissioning works required which will
reflect market conditions at the relevant time.  Furthermore, the timing of decommissioning is likely
to depend on when the oil field ceases to produce at economically viable rates.  This, in turn, will
depend upon future oil prices, which are inherently uncertain.

Information on the Group’s recognized provision for P&A costs is provided in Notes 7 and 13.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2023 2022
Cash on hand and in banks P=80,018,610 P=32,140,959
Short-term investments 315,526,608 349,598,438

P=395,545,218 P=381,739,397

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates.  Short-term investments are made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group and earn interest at respective short-term investment rates.

Interest earned from cash in banks and short-term investments in 2023, 2022 and 2021 amounted to
P=16.8 million, P=5.6 million and P=2.4 million, respectively.
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5. Receivables

2023 2022
Advances to related parties (see Note 16) P=230,500,564 P=230,885,564
Accrued interest from related parties (see Note 16) 24,746,127 24,072,093
Accrued interest from banks 2,517,902 1,872,866
Accounts with partners (see Note 7) 243,446 5,298,609
Others 406,463 434,199

258,414,502 262,563,331
Less allowance for ECL 20,920,198 20,920,198

P=237,494,304 P=241,643,133

The receivables are generally collectible on demand.  These are non-interest bearing except for
advances to related parties (see Note 16).

Accrued interests are earned from advances to related parties, bank placements and short-term
investments.  The Group makes advances for the operating expenses of the consortiums wherein it is
the operator.  The Group records this under the “accounts with partners” account which represent
receivables from these consortium members.

6. Crude oil inventory

The crude oil inventories carried at NRV amounted to P=59.9 million and P=57.2 million as at
December 31, 2023  and 2022, respectively (see Note 7).  The cost of petroleum inventories
recognized as expense and included in “Share in costs and operating expenses” amounted to
P=137.9 million, P=103.9 million and P=134.9 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively
(see Note 17).

7. Interests in Joint Operations

The Group’s participating interests (in percentage) in the different SCs as at December 31, 2023 and
2022 are as follows:

Participating Interest
(in percentage)

Area Location 2023 2022
SC-14 (Northwest Palawan): Philippines

Block C-1 (Galoc) Philippines 10.17782 10.17782
Block C-2 (West Linapacan) Philippines 28.07000 28.07000

Nominated Area 10 Malajon (formerly SC-6A)* Philippines **72.1662 51.65000
SC-6B (Bonita-Cadlao)*** Philippines 17.45460 17.45460
SC-53 (Onshore Mindoro) Philippines 81.48000 81.48000
SC-74 (Linapacan)**** Philippines 25.00000 25.00000

*Relinquished and awaiting DOE’s approval of service contract application
**Group’s participating interest in the new SC application
*** DOA and Transfer of Operatorship to Nido Petroleum were approved by the DOE on 19 December 2022
****PXP Energy as the operator, submitted the Notice of surrender of SC to the DOE on 13 December 2023.
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SC-14 C1 Galoc Block
Change in management and block operatorship
In July 2018, Tamarind Galoc Pte Ltd (Tamarind), a subsidiary of Singapore-based Tamarind
Resources, acquired Nido Petroleum Ltd. (Nido)’s subsidiaries Galoc Production Company (GPC)
and Nido Production (Galoc) Pte Ltd (NPG), giving Tamarind majority equity and operatorship of the
Galoc Field.

In December 2020, Tamarind-owned NPG Pty. Ltd. replaced GPC as the operator of SC-14C1.

In March 2022, Matahio Energy, an independent energy company, acquired NPG from Tamarind.
NPG remains the operator of the Galoc field.

Operations update
The total production for the year 2023 was 502,624 barrels, bringing the field’s Total Cumulative
Gross Field Production to 24,527,542 barrels of oil at the end of 2023.  Three (3) oil liftings
(Cargoes #74, #75, and #76) were completed in 2023 with a total volume of 475,183 barrels.

Nido Petroleum Galoc (NPG) Pty Ltd. continued to manage the remaining production wells (G5
and G6) in line with the End of Field Life (EOFL) management strategy.

The Deed of Assignment (DOA), for the assignment of Kuwait Foreign Petroleum Exploration
Company’s withdrawn interest, and a Side Letter Agreement, for the settlement of liabilities between
them and the joint venture was signed and made effective on April 30,2022.  Under the DOA, the
Parent Company’s participating interest in the SC was increased from 7.21495% to 10.1778%.  The
DOA was formally approved by the Department of Energy (DOE) in October 2022.  Towards the end
of the 2022, Tamarind-owned NPG Pty. Ltd. replaced GPC as the operator of SC-14C1 (Galoc).

The independent audit of oil reserves and contingent resources as at December 31, 2023 associated
with the Galoc field has indicated well cessation dates beyond the license expiry date in December
2025 indicating Galoc EOFL in 2027, 2028, and 2029 based on the Low (1P+1C) 1.41, Mid (2P+2C)
1.81, and High (3P+3C) 2.45 MMBO reserves case scenarios.

Change in oil reserve estimate
The audit by the Group’s competent person with a cut off period of December 31, 2023 indicated a
decrease in oil reserves estimate.  The change in estimated oil reserve increased the 2023 depletion
expense by P=1.1 million.

SC-14 C-2 West Linapacan Block
With the issuance of the DOE Circular DC-2023-12-0033, outlining the procedures for awarding
Development and Production Petroleum Service Contracts (DPPSC), the JV will conduct a review of
well plans and development concepts that will be integrated into the Plan of Development (POD).
The POD will serve as the basis/justification for the application of a DPPSC in 2025 or earlier.

The Joint Venture submitted the 2024 Work Program & Budget, which was approved by the DOE on
October 19, 2023.

Nominated Area 10 Malajon (formerly SC6A)
The previous joint venture (JV) took a proactive decision of relinquishing SC6A in 2021 was
approved by the DOE on September 5, 2022.
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Application for a new SC
In a letter dated November 7, 2022, the DOE granted the Area Clearance for the nomination of the
former SC 6A Block, the Area of Interest (AOI), with an area of 108,000 hectares.

In 2023, the Parent Company as the designated operator, applied for a new SC by nomination under
the DOE’s Philippine Conventional Energy Contracting Program (PCECP).

A new Joint Application and Participation Agreement was executed by the joint venture partners
without Alcorn and PetroEnergy.  The new participating interests of the remaining JV members are as
follows:

JV Members Participating Interest (%)
The Philodrill Corporation 72.1662
Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation 14.1460
Forum Energy Philippines Corporation 6.8439
PXP Energy Corporation (PXP) 6.8439

Once the new SC is granted, the Group will continue its exploration activities in the northern portion
of the AOI where several prospects have been identified and are being matured for possible drilling
and development.  However, in the southern half of the AOI, the development of Octon Discovery
faces uncertainty.  With its marginal resource, Octon Discovery has always been considered as a tie-
back appraisal/development opportunity to the Galoc operations.  With the Galoc field nearing its
EOFL, the opportunity to develop the Octon Discovery has significantly diminished, impairing the
potential recovery of its share in the deferred oil and gas exploration costs in the old SC6A.  The
Group, therefore, recognized provision for unrecoverable deferred oil and gas exploration costs
amounting to P=277.6 million in 2022 (see Note 11).

On January 9, 2023, the Group submitted a request for an Area Clearance over the amended area of
interest covering 160,000 hectares in Northwest Palawan for nomination to the PCECP.

On January 26, 2023, the DOE granted the Area Clearance and advised the Group to submit a Letter
of Intent, a copy of the Certification Letter, a Verification Report, and a Location Map to proceed
with the nomination and/or application process for the said area of interest.

On February 15, 2023, the required documents were submitted to the DOE and subsequently
approved the nomination of the AOI on February 23, 2023.

The Group was directed to proceed with the PCECP nomination/application process.  In compliance
with the DOE’s directive, the Group, on March 9, 2023, paid the application fee, published the
application in two (2) broadsheet newspapers on March 15, 2023, and submitted the bid documents
on March 17, 2023.  Per DOE’s schedule, the deadline of swiss challenge and opening of the bid will
be on May 15, 2023.

In a letter dated June 26, 2023, the DOE notified the Group that, along with its Partners, it is legally,
financially, and technically qualified for the award of a new Service Contract over the nominated
area.  In November of 2023, the Office of the DOE Secretary endorsed the new SC for approval and
signature to the Office of the President.  As of March 19, 2024, the DOE has yet to receive
communication from Malacañang regarding the signing of the new SC.

SC-6B Bonita-Cadlao
In February 2022, Nido entered a Farmin Agreement (FIA) with the rest of the JV to increase its
equity in the SC. Under the FIA, Nido acquired an additional 63.637% to bring its participating
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interest to 72.727%. This is in consideration of Nido funding 100% of the costs and operating the
planned Phased Redevelopment of the Cadlao Oil Field.  Phase 1 of the redevelopment plan will
entail the drilling and Extended Well Test of Cadlao-4, while the full-field redevelopment with the
drilling of additional infill production wells and the installation of permanent facilities will comprise
Phase 2.  After the divestment of participating interest under the FIA, the Parent Company maintained
a significant level of participation in the SC at 17.4546%.

JV Member
Participating Interest
Pre-FIA Post-FIA

The Philodrill Corporation 58.182% 17.4546%
Nido Petroleum Galoc Pty., Ltd. 9.090% 72.7270%
Oriental Petroleum and Minerals Corporation 16.364% 4.9092%
Alcorn Petroleum and Mineral Corporation 8.182% 2.4546%
Forum Energy Philippines Corporation 8.182% 2.4546%
Total 100.000% 100.000%

The DOA was submitted to the DOE on April 12, 2022 and was approved on December 19, 2022.
With the approval of the DOA, the operatorship of the SC was transferred to Nido.  A new Joint
Operating Agreement was signed in July 2023, which reflected the Post-FIA participating interest.

For the drilling and Extended Well Test of Cadlao-4, Nido confirmed that the drillship, Deep
Venture, owned and operated by Saba Drilling will be used for the operations. The vessel is currently
in Dong Quyen Port, Vung Tau, Vietnam, and will sail to the Philippines under the Flag of the
Bahamas with Nassau as the Port of Registry.  The drilling contract with Saba Drilling was signed,
and the document was submitted to the DOE in December 2023.

The drillship has been in warm stack since 2014 and requires refurbishment and repair before being
given a classification by Det Norske Veritas (DNV) a Norweigian-based classification society for the
maritime, energy, and oil and gas industries.  The tentative schedule of the drillship to sail to the
Philippines has been delayed, consequently pushing back the spud of Cadlao 4 to June 2024.

On October 23, 2023, the JV approved the 2024 Work program and budget, which was submitted to
the DOE on October 25 2023.

Application for a new SC
Following the DOE’s issuance of the Department Circular DC2023-12-0033 governing the awarding
of petroleum SC for DPPSC for expiring SCs, Nido submitted all documentary requirement for
application to the DOE on January 26, 2024 (see Notes 11 and 24).

SC-53 Onshore Mindoro
The Certificate of Non-Coverage for the Progreso Drilling Project was issued by the DENR-
Environmental Management Bureau (EMB) on April 28, 2023.

The Group also continues to engage the NCIP for the Certification Precondition (CP) application over
the Cambayan Project. Since the Cambayan Project area straddles the boundary of Occidental and
Oriental Mindoro, coordination is being conducted with both Occidental and Oriental Mindoro
offices.

For the Occidental Mindoro side, following the two community assemblies and the decision-making
process in November 2022, the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) Negotiation and Drafting was
held on March 9, 2023.  The finalization and signing of the MOA with the IPs are currently on hold
pending a review of the document by the NCIP Legal Affairs Office (LAO).



- 19 -

*SGVFS188030*

On the Oriental side, the Pre-FPIC Conference took place on May 23, 2023, via Zoom.  It was agreed
during the conference that the approval of the Work and Financial Plan for the FPIC activities be
deferred due to issues regarding the coverage of the FPIC within the ancestral domains. Subsequently,
the Group sent a letter to the NCIP Region IV-B Office requesting guidelines on the FPIC process.
The FPIC activities in Oriental was put on hold until until MOA in Occidental is signed.

SC 74 Linapacan
Despite extensive efforts whereas, joint venture executed all Sub-Phase 3 work programs, no viable
drillable prospect was identified.  The joint venture agreed that any further studies or activities on
Linapacan B would only escalate expenses without significantly improving the field's economic
viability.  Further, advancing to the final sub-phase of the SC will require a commitment to drill a
well within the remaining 8 months, which the joint venture will be unable to fulfill.  It was,
therefore, unanimously decided that the SC should be surrendered to the DOE.

On December 13, 2023, PXP as the operator, and on behalf of the joint venture, submitted to the DOE
the Notice of Surrender of the SC.  In relation to this, the Group recognized an allowance for
impairment loss amounting to P=57.3 million in 2023 (see Note 11).

The Group’s interest in the joint arrangements in the various SCs and any assets and liabilities
incurred jointly with the other partners, as well as the related revenues and expenses of the joint
operation, which are included in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

2023 2022
Current assets:

Receivables (Note 5):
Accounts with partners P=243,446 P=5,298,609

Crude oil inventory (Note 6) 59,864,176 57,229,468
60,107,622 62,528,077

Noncurrent assets:
Wells and platforms (Note 8) 251,149,867 300,525,298
Deferred oil and gas exploration costs (Note 11) 563,138,013 604,283,335

814,287,880 904,808,633
Current liabilities:

Accounts with partners (Note 12) (7,197,568) (6,518,340)
Noncurrent liability:

Provision for P&A costs (Note 13) (30,748,952) (34,366,961)
(P=37,946,520) (P=40,885,301)

2023 2022 2021
Revenue:

Share in petroleum revenue P=203,591,907 P=237,488,580 P=207,126,666
Cost of petroleum operations:
 Share in costs and operating

expenses (Note 17) (138,678,431) (105,403,947) (139,477,198)
Depletion (Note 8) (52,675,739) (48,261,960) (51,282,027)

Other income (loss):
 Foreign exchange gains

(losses) - net 5,002,474 10,784,517 (2,848,225)
P=17,240,211 P=94,607,190 P=13,519,216
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8. Property and Equipment

December 31, 2023

Wells, Platforms,
and other Facilities

(see Note 7)

Office
Condominium

Units and
Improvements

Transportation
Equipment

Office
Furniture,

Fixtures and
Equipment Total

Cost:
 Beginning of year P=1,184,627,619 P=18,961,929 P=8,986,000 P=8,309,991 P=1,220,885,539
 Additions 3,300,308 – 6,000,000 401,241 9,701,549
 Disposals (4,154,027) – (66,800) – (4,220,827)
 Write-off (33,319,617) – – – (33,319,617)
 End of year 1,150,454,283 18,961,929 14,919,200 8,711,232 1,193,046,644
Accumulated depletion and depreciation:
 Beginning of year 850,782,704 14,299,964 8,907,432 7,911,534 881,901,634
 Depletion (Note 7) 52,675,739 – – – 52,675,739
 Depreciation (Note 18) – 547,110 15,980 202,339 765,429

Disposal (4,154,027) – (66,800) – (4,220,827)
 End of year 899,304,416 14,847,074 8,856,612 8,113,873 931,121,975
Allowance for unrecoverable costs: – – –
 Beginning of year 33,319,617 33,319,617
 Write-off (Note 7) (33,319,617) – – – (33,319,617)
 End of year – – – – –
Net book values P=251,149,867 P=4,114,855 P=6,062,588 P=597,359 P=261,924,669

December 31, 2022

Wells, Platforms,
and other Facilities

(see Note 7)

Office
Condominium

Units and
Improvements

Transportation
Equipment

Office
Furniture,

Fixtures and
Equipment Total

Cost:
Beginning of year P=1,161,253,641 P=18,961,929 P=13,887,100 P=8,015,016 P=1,202,117,686
Additions 9,264,506 – 79,900 294,975 9,639,381
Disposals – – (4,981,000) – (4,981,000)

 Adjustment to remeasure
decommissioning asset (Note 13) 14,109,472 – – – 14,109,472

End of year 1,184,627,619 18,961,929 8,986,000 8,309,991 1,220,885,539
Accumulated depletion and depreciation:

Beginning of year 802,520,744 13,752,856 13,686,067 7,706,131 837,665,798
Depletion (Note 7) 48,261,960 – – – 48,261,960
Depreciation (Note 18) – 547,108 202,365 205,403 954,876
Disposal – – (4,981,000) (4,981,000)
End of year 850,782,704 14,299,964 8,907,432 7,911,534 881,901,634

Allowance for unrecoverable costs:
Beginning and end of year 33,319,617 – – – 33,319,617

Net book values P=300,525,298 P=4,661,965 P=78,568 P=398,457 P=305,664,288

For SC14 C1 Galoc, depletion rates used in 2023, 2022 and 2021 are P=857.2 per barrel, P=834.8 per
barrel and P=777.4 per barrel, respectively.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying values of decommissioning asset included in Wells,
Platforms, and other Facilities amounted to P=8.3 million and P=12.9 million, respectively.

In relation to the joint consideration approved by the SC-14 consortia for the abandonment and
surrender of SC-14 Blocks A, B, B1, and D, a surrender notice was submitted to DOE last March 4,
2021.  The relinquishment of the blocks was approved by the DOE on May 18, 2022.

The Group recognized an allowance for unrecoverable deferred oil and gas exploration costs for
SC14-D Retention Block amounting to P=33.3 million in 2021 and eventually written off in 2023.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group continues to utilize fully depreciated and depleted
property and equipment with an aggregate acquisition cost of P=23.6 million and P=24.5 million,
respectively.
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9. Investments in Associates

2023 2022
Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development

Corporation (ACMDC) P=472,555,692 P=464,379,292
Penta Capital Investment Corporation (PCIC) 355,984,418 354,393,749
Penta Capital Holdings, Inc. (PCHI) 79,225,163 80,562,114

907,765,273 899,335,155
Impairment loss (4,173,138) –

P=903,592,135 P=899,335,155

On December 18, 2015, the Group entered into a Joint Voting Agreement with Alakor Corporation
(Alakor), National Book Store, Inc. (NBS) and Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation (APHC),
collectively known as the Ramos Group, to jointly vote their shares in ACMDC on all matters
affecting their rights as stockholders effective January 1, 2015.  The combined interest of the parties
to the agreement represents 31.85% interest in ACMDC as of December 31, 2023.  By virtue of this
agreement, significant influence in the associate is established.

The details of investments in associates carried under the equity method follow:

2023 2022
Acquisition costs P=633,485,090 P=633,485,090
Accumulated equity in net earnings:

Beginning of year 210,352,949 182,511,234
Share in net income 13,323,123 33,162,913
Dividends (5,321,197) (5,321,198)
Impairment (4,173,138) –
End of year 214,181,737 210,352,949

Accumulated share in OCI:
Beginning of year 55,497,116 26,480,535
Share in OCI of associates 428,192 29,016,581
End of year 55,925,308 55,497,116

Carrying value P=903,592,135 P=899,335,155

As at December 31, 2023, the Group determined the recoverable amount of its investment in
ACMDC is its value-in-use discounted using 8.16% post-tax rate (11.86% pre-tax rate).  The Group
recognized an impairment loss on its investment in ACMDC amounting to P=4.2 million in 2023.

Summarized financial statement information of ACMDC, PCIC and PCHI, based on their PFRSs
financial statements, and a reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the group’s
consolidated financial statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2023 , 2022 and 2021
are set out below:

2023 2022 2021
ACMDC PCIC PCHI ACMDC PCIC PCHI ACMDC PCIC PCHI

(in thousands)
Revenue from

contract with
customers P=18,865,013 P=109,765 P=57,703 P=16,822,495 P=112,627 P=71,541 P=17,937,583 P=112,471 P=68,958

Costs and expenses (16,620,105) (85,892) (21,015) (16,511,122) (73,426) (21,085) (12,281,339) (74,157) (29,321)
Other income

(charges) (541,801) – (36,807) 3,137,275 – (21,807) (1,230,621) – (5,660)
Provision for (benefit

from) income tax (585,551) (5,439) – (230,562) (8,115) (1,767) (564,038) (7,822) (3,337)

(Forward)
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2023 2022 2021
ACMDC PCIC PCHI ACMDC PCIC PCHI ACMDC PCIC PCHI

(in thousands)
Net income (loss) P=1,117,556 P=18,434 (P=119) P=3,218,086 P=31,086 P=26,882 P=3,861,585 P=30,492 P=30,640
Group’s share in net

income P=5,965 P=7,374 (P=16) P=17,177 P=12,434 P=3,551 P=1,345 P=29,064 P=7,637
Other comprehensive

income (loss) P=414,142 (P=4,457) P=– P=5,082,233 P=28,387 P=– P=1,094,033 P=2,097 P=–
Group’s share in OCI P=2,211 (P=1,783) P=– P=27,128 P=11,354 P=– P=5,798 P=839 P=–

2023 2022
ACMDC PCIC PCHI ACMDC PCIC PCHI

(in thousands)
Total current assets P=3,883,345 P=1,144,966 P=422,147 P=3,223,087 P=891,427 P=468,527
Total noncurrent assets 64,345,413 260,680 165,187 64,225,715 267,227 132,023
Total current liabilities 6,332,992 455,325 23,384 5,468,206 210,265 17,975
Total noncurrent

liabilities 16,553,076 25,090 – 18,169,704 21,627 –
Total equity 45,342,690 925,231 563,950 43,810,892 926,762 582,575
Proportion of net assets 242,099 370,092 74,509 232,198 370,705 76,970
Carrying amount of the investment 468,382 355,984 79,225 464,380 354,394 80,562

The difference between the Group’s proportion of net assets and the carrying amount of the
investment represents goodwill.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared under the same reporting period as the Group.

The associates have no contingent liabilities and capital commitments as at December 31, 2023 and
2022.

10. Financial Assets at FVOCI

2023 2022
Quoted shares of stock P=110,646,650 P=110,646,650
Net unrealized loss (54,017,010) (41,014,602)

P=56,629,640 P=69,632,048

In 2021, the Parent Company sold 300 million shares of investment in Oriental Petroleum & Minerals
Corporation (OPMC) with a total carrying amount of P=3.8 million for P=8.4 million, which resulted to
a gain on sale of P=4.5 million.  The Parent Company received cash dividends from OPMC and Shang
Properties totaling to  P=1.3 million each year in 2023, 2022 and 2021.

The following table illustrates the movement of the “Net unrealized loss on decline in value of
financial assets at FVOCI” account in the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial
position:

2023 2022
Beginning of year P=41,014,602 P=28,635,059
Fair value changes during the year 13,002,408 12,379,543
End of year P=54,017,010 P=41,014,602
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11. Deferred Oil and Gas Exploration Costs

The following table illustrates the movements in the deferred oil and gas exploration costs account:

2023 2022
Cost:

Beginning P=1,127,430,186 P=1,108,012,203
Additions 16,156,965 19,417,983
Write-off (245,526,359) –
Ending 898,060,792 1,127,430,186

Accumulated impairment losses:
Beginning (523,146,851) (99,392,028)
Impairment (Note 7) (57,302,287) (423,754,823)
Write-off 245,526,359 –
Ending (334,922,779) (523,146,851)

Net book value P=563,138,013 P=604,283,335

The full recovery of deferred oil and gas exploration costs incurred in connection with the Group’s
participation in the acquisition and exploration of petroleum concessions is dependent upon the
discovery of oil in commercial quantities from the respective petroleum concessions and the success
of future development thereof.

Under the SCs entered into with the DOE covering certain petroleum contract areas in various
locations in the Philippines, the participating oil companies (collectively known as Contractors) are
obliged to provide, at their sole risk, the services, technology and financing necessary in the
performance of their obligations under these contracts.  The Contractors are also obliged to spend
specified amounts indicated in the contract in direct proportion to their work obligations.

However, if the Contractors fail to comply with their work obligations, they shall pay the government
the amount they should have spent in direct proportion to their work obligations.

The Contractors have Operating Agreements among themselves which govern their rights and
obligations under these contracts.

The Contractors entered into several SCs with the Philippine Government, through the DOE, for the
exploration, development and exploitation of the contract areas situated mostly in offshore Palawan
where oil discoveries were made.  The Group’s present petroleum revenues and production costs and
related expenses are from SC14C1 Galoc.

The aforementioned SC provide for certain minimum work expenditure obligations and the drilling of
a specified number of wells and are covered by operating agreements which set forth the participating
interests, rights and obligations of the Contractor.  The Group’s share in the jointly controlled assets
of the aforementioned SC is included principally under the “Receivables”, “Crude oil inventory”,
“Property and equipment” and “Deferred oil and gas exploration costs” accounts in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 7).

SWAN Block
Since 2007, the Group’s continued attempt to acquire equity in SCs 57 and 58 by swap or farm-in has
been unsuccessful.  In 2022, the Group’s exploration group proposed that the Group should focus its
resources on its more prospective and potentially less costly projects.  The Group recognized an
impairment loss of P=99.4 million in 2020 and the Group written off in 2023.
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PCECP Area 7 Sulu Sea
The Group, together with bid partner PXP, submitted on August 15, 2019, a joint bid over PCECP
Area 7 in Sulu Sea, one of the 14 pre-determined areas on offer under PCECP.  The joint application
was found to be in order and satisfied the criteria set forth by the DOE.  This was confirmed in
writing by the DOE in September that the joint bid qualified for further substantive legal, financial,
and technical evaluation. The DOE held in abeyance the awarding of a new service contract pending
the complete organization of Bangsamoro Autonomous Region in Muslim Mindanao (BARMM) and
the implementation of its policies.

As of December 31, 2022, the DOE has not sent any formal communication to the Group and PXP
nor awarded any new service contract for PCECP Area 7.  It is also uncertain under the new policies
of BARMM, if the historical costs in the area will be recognized under the new service contract.  The
Group, therefore, recognized full provision for unrecoverable deferred oil exploration costs
amounting to P=146.1 million in 2022.

On September 23, 2023, the DOE issued a termination of the processing of the application for
Petroleum service contract. Therefore, in 2023, the Group, wrote off the recognized provision in 2022
for unrecoverable deferred oil and gas exploration costs amounting to P=146.1 million.

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2023 2022
Accounts with partners (see Note 7) P=7,197,568 P=6,518,340
Accruals for:

Employee benefits – 4,570,000
Professional fees 845,600 941,920
Others 73,960 220,167

Withholding taxes 459,162 358,030
Others 183,038 123,815

P=8,759,328 P=12,732,272

Accounts with partners represent payables arising from transactions of the consortium and varies in
timing with regards to settlement.  The Group sends out its billing within 30 days.

Accrued liabilities are usually settled within 30 days.

Withholding taxes are payable within 14 days after the close of the month.

13. Provisions for Plug and Abandonment Costs

2023 2022
Beginning of year P=34,366,961 P=25,396,556
Accretion of interest 2,000,342 1,915,669
Effect of translation adjustment (5,618,351) (7,054,736)
Effect of change in estimate (Note 8) – 14,109,472
End of year P=30,748,952 P=34,366,961

Beginning October 1, 2016, the Group makes full provision for the future cost of decommissioning
oil field on a discounted basis.  The provision represents the present value of P&A costs, which are



- 25 -

*SGVFS188030*

expected to be incurred up to 2022.  This provision has been created based on the estimates and
assumptions stated in the Revised Decommissioning Plan and Budget approved by the DOE last
October 3, 2016.  Assumptions, based on the current economic environment, have been made which
management believes, are reasonable basis upon which to estimate the future liability.

The final P&A costs are uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many factors, including
estimates of the extent and costs of decommissioning activities, technological changes, regulatory
changes and changes in discount rate of 6.25% as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts currently
provided.  Therefore, material estimates and assumptions are made in determining the provision for
decommissioning.  As a result, there could be material adjustments to the provision established,
which could affect future financial results.

14. Equity

Capital Stock

Number of
Shares Amount

Capital stock - P=0.01 par value
Authorized - 200,000,000,000 shares

Issued and subscribed 191,868,805,358 P=1,918,688,053
Subscription receivable (17,520,811,006) (175,208,110)

174,347,994,352 P=1,743,479,943

On December 21, 2023, the BOD approved that the 50% balance on subscriptions amounting to
P=175.2 million to the Parent Company’s 2009 stock rights offering shall be called for payment by the
BOD no later than December 31, 2024 instead of December 31, 2023.

On August 6, 1969, the Parent Company’s common shares were listed and traded on the PSE at an
initial offer price of P=0.01 per share.  Subsequent listing of shares were made by the Parent Company
as follows:

Type of Shares
Number of shares

registered
Number of shares

licensed
Issue Price/

Par value Date of Approval
2,500,000,000 2,000,000,000 P=0.01 August 6, 1969
7,500,000,000 5,295,151,100 0.01 February 2, 1971

Class A shares 7,032,105,679 7,032,105,679 0.01 December 8, 1987
Class B shares 2,967,894,321 2,967,894,321 0.01 December 8, 1987
Class A shares 21,096,317,037 20,012,278,687 0.01 August 15, 1988
Class B shares 8,903,682,963 – 0.01 August 15, 1988
Class A shares 28,000,000,000 21,000,000,000 0.01 May 30, 1989
Class B shares 12,000,000,000 9,000,000,000 0.01 May 30, 1989
Class A shares 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000 0.01 June 26, 1991
Class B shares 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 0.01 June 26, 1991
Class A shares 33,000,000,000 14,690,079,374 0.01 March 9, 1994
Class B shares 22,000,000,000 22,692,570,213 0.01 March 9, 1994

– 42,367,016,498 0.01 December 9, 1994
45,000,000,000 38,373,761,071 0.01 September 18, 2008

As at December 31, 2023, the Group has 8,533 shareholders.
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Retained Earnings
As at December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, undistributed earnings of associates amounting to
P=218,354,874, P=210,352,949, and P=182,511,234, respectively, are not available for dividend
declaration until the actual declaration of the subsidiaries, associates, and joint operations.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has unpaid dividends amounting to P=33.1 million.

15. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

2023 2022 2021
Net income (loss) (P=33,878,324) (P=339,333,554) P=36,324,913
Weighted average number of

common shares issued and
outstanding during the year
(see Note 14) 191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358

Basic earnings (loss) per share (P=0.0002) (P=0.0018) P=0.0002

The Group had no potentially dilutive shares as at December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021.  Thus, the
basic and diluted loss per share in 2023, 2022, and 2021 are the same for each of three years
presented.

There have been no other transactions involving common shares between the end of the financial
reporting period and the date of authorization of the consolidated financial statements.

16. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exists when the party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions.  Such relationships also exist between and/or among entities which
are under common control with the reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or
stockholders.  In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationships, and not merely to the legal form.

a. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s advances to related parties and the
corresponding interest income from these advances are as follows:

Related Party Volumes
Advances to

related parties

Accrued
interest

receivable Terms Condition
Stockholder
Alakor 2023 P=– P=169,000,000 P=7,589,183 To be settled in cash;

collectible on
demand; 4.75%

interest per annum

Unsecured, no
impairment2022 P=– P=169,000,000 P=6,906,661

Under common
stockholders

Fil-Energy Corporation 2023 – 4,753,762 16,166,436 To be settled in cash;
collectible on

demand; non-interest
bearing

Unsecured, fully
impaired

Unsecured, fully
impaired

2022 – 4,753,762 16,166,436

(Forward)
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Related Party Volumes
Advances to

related parties

Accrued
interest

receivable Terms Condition
United Paragon Mining

Corporation
2023
2022

P=–
P=–

P=1,376,802
P=1,376,802

P=–
P=–

To be settled in cash;
collectible on

demand; non-interest
bearing

Unsecured, no
impairment

National Bookstore,
Inc. (NBS)

2023
2022

–
–

55,370,000
55,755,000

990,508
998,996

To be settled in cash;
collectible on June 30,

2024; 3.5% interest
per annum

Unsecured, no
impairment

Total (Note 5) 2023 P=– P=230,500,564 P=24,746,127
2022 P=– P=230,885,564 P=24,072,093

The Company has P=169.0 million advances to Alakor which bear interest rate of 4.75% per
annum, fixed until full payment of the loan.  The term of the loans are collectible upon demand.

The Company has $1.0 million (P=55.4 million) advances to National Bookstore, Inc. with an
interest rate of 3.5% per annum, fixed until the full payment of loan.  The maturity date of the
loan is on June 30, 2023.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, intercompany receivables and payables eliminated during
consolidation amounted to P=8.4 million, respectively.  This pertains to non-interest-bearing
advances made by the Parent Company to PPC, its wholly owned subsidiary.

b. The interest income earned by the Group from its advances to related parties follow:

2023 2022 2021
Alakor P=8,138,993 P=8,138,993 P=8,138,993
National Bookstore 1,971,562 1,933,549 1,751,764

P=10,110,555 P=10,072,542 P=9,890,757

c. The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

2023 2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits P=13,806,552 P=19,130,520 P=20,085,109
Post-employment benefits 1,159,670 6,413,302 5,326,420

P=14,966,222 P=25,543,822 P=25,411,529

Key management personnel are those individuals having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing, and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including
any directors (whether executive or otherwise) of the Group.

d. Material related party transactions refer to any related party transaction/s, either individually or in
aggregate over a 12-month period with the same related party, amounting to 10% or higher of the
Group’s total consolidated assets based on its latest audited financial statements.

All individual material related party transactions shall be endorsed by the Related Party
Transactions Committee for approval by at least two-thirds vote of the BOD, with at least a
majority of the independent directors voting to approve the material related party transactions.
In case that a majority of the independent directors’ vote is not secured the material related party
transactions may be ratified by the vote of the stockholders representing at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital.
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Aggregate related party transactions within a 12-month period that breaches the materiality
threshold shall require endorsement by the same committee for approval of the BOD.

17. Share in Costs and Operating Expenses

2023 2022 2021
Petroleum operations (Note 6) P=137,890,255 P=103,942,774 P=134,884,214
Personnel costs 788,176 1,461,173 4,592,984

P=138,678,431 P=105,403,947 P=139,477,198

Share in petroleum operations consist of the Group’s share in the production costs, lifting and
marketing fees, and other operating expenses of the SC-14 C1 Galoc oil fields for 2023, 2022 and
2021, respectively.  The cost of petroleum inventories recognized as expense in 2023, 2022 and 2021
amounted to P=137.9 million, P=103.9 million and P=134.9 million, respectively (see Note 6).

Personnel costs are time charges of the exploration group for work done on the fields mentioned
above.

18. General and Administrative Expenses

2023 2022 2021
Personnel costs P=32,460,310 P=36,402,010 P=34,688,807
Entertainment, amusement and

recreation 5,725,606 8,227,696 6,267,631
Transportation and travel 4,332,887 6,397,280 4,946,605
Outside services 2,769,151 2,405,679 2,537,283
Supplies 2,651,764 3,898,159 2,989,481
Dues and subscriptions 1,701,065 1,392,346 1,416,821
Software licenses and

maintenance fees 1,582,186 382,129 –
Utilities 1,516,509 1,470,544 1,566,282
Insurance 1,373,320 1,438,734 1,472,709
Depreciation (see Note 8) 765,430 954,876 3,146,682
Taxes and licenses 255,640 228,226 236,071
Others 1,066,320 1,724,672 1,572,823

P=56,200,188 P=64,922,351 P=60,841,195

Personnel costs include the following:

2023 2022 2021
Salaries, allowances and bonuses P=20,731,104 P=25,995,486 P=24,756,272
Pension expenses (Note 19) 6,783,334 2,308,413 4,164,051
Employee facilities and benefit 4,103,206 7,324,288 3,832,098
SSS, Med. and HDMF Premium 842,666 773,823 738,158
Provision for year-end expenses – – 1,198,228

P=32,460,310 P=36,402,010 P=34,688,807
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19. Retirement Benefit Liability

The Group has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covering its regular
permanent employees.  Retirement benefit expenses are based on each employee’s number of years of
service and final covered compensation.

Republic Act (RA) No. 7641 (“Retirement Pay Law”) an Act amending Article 287 of Presidential
Decree No. 442 (“Labor Code of the Philippines”), requires a provision for retirement pay to
qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided,
however, that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law.  The law does not require minimum
funding of the plan.
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Changes in the net defined benefit liability in 2023 and 2022 follow:

2023

January 1,
2023

Net Benefit Cost in Profit or Loss

Benefits Paid

Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Income

December 31,
2023

Current
Service Cost

Net interest
Cost (Income) Subtotal

Actuarial Gain
 on Defined

 Benefit
 Obligation

Remeasurement
Loss on

 Plan Asset Subtotal Contributions
Present value of defined benefit

obligation (DBO) P=39,454,859 P=6,783,334 P=1,809,156 P=8,592,490 (P=14,476,965) P=528,397 P=– P=528,397 P=– P=34,098,781
Fair value of plan asset (37,632,720) – (1,756,330) (1,756,330) 14,476,965 – 1,672 1,672 (8,000,000) (32,910,413)
Net plan assets P=1,822,139 P=6,783,334 P=52,826 P=6,836,160 P=– P=528,397 P=1,672 P=530,069 (P=8,000,000) P=1,188,368

2022

January 1,
2022

Net Benefit Cost in Profit or Loss

Benefits Paid

Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Income

December 31,
2022

Current
Service Cost

Net interest
Cost (Income) Subtotal

Actuarial Gain
 on Defined

 Benefit
 Obligation

Remeasurement
Loss on

 Plan Asset Subtotal Contributions
Present value of defined benefit

obligation P=68,897,309 P=2,308,413 P=1,644,915 P=3,953,328 (P=38,269,614) P=4,873,836 P=– P=4,873,836 P=– P=39,454,859
Fair value of plan asset (52,568,184) – (981,798) (981,798) 38,269,614 – 647,648 647,648 (23,000,000) (37,632,720)
Net plan assets P=16,329,125 P=2,308,413 P=663,117 P=2,971,530 P=‒ P=4,873,836 P=647,648 P=5,521,484 (P=23,000,000) P=1,822,139

The maximum economic benefit available is a combination of expected refunds from the plan and reductions in future contributions.  The trustee has no specific
matching strategy between the plan assets and the retirement obligation.  The Company is not required to pre-fund the defined benefit obligation before they become due.
The amount and timing of contributions to the retirement fund are at the Group’s discretion.

The Group’s plan is a noncontributory defined benefit plan covering all regular and permanent employees.  Benefits are based on the employee’s final plan salary and
years of service.

The fund is administered by a trustee bank under the supervision of the Retirement Committee of the plan.  The Committee is responsible for the investment strategy of
the plan.
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The carrying value and fair value of plan assets by each class as at the end of the reporting period are
as follow:

2023 2022
Cash P=2,071 P=847
Fixed income securities:

Government securities 29,611,341 31,245,440
Corporate bonds 1,943,397 2,025,803
Mutual funds 863,775 3,864,556

Accrued income receivables 459,731 457,322
Equity securities 70,000 70,000
Liabilities (39,903) (31,248)

P=32,910,412 P=37,632,720

The plan assets have diverse investments in equity and debt securities, and do not have any
concentration risk.

The principal assumptions used in determining retirement benefits costs and retirement benefit
liability for defined benefit plan shown below.

2023 2022
Discount rate 6.06% 7.00%
Salary increase rate 2.00% 2.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined retirement benefits liability as at the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Increase
(decrease) 2023 2022 2021

Discount rates +1% P=32,377,705 P=37,972,780 P=66,992,700
-1% 36,018,067 41,110,744 71,034,430

Salary increase rate +1% 36,199,525 41,283,166 71,312,040
-1% 32,188,355 37,797,683 66,701,740

The Group contributed P=8.5 million to the defined benefit pension plan in 2023 and is expected to
contribute P=2.3 million in 2024.

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at December 31, 2023:

Within the next 12 months P=1,830,493
Between 1 and 5 years 22,007,651
Between 5 and 10 years 20,242,365
Between 10 and 15 years 11,653,208
Between 15 and 20 years 16,365,037
More than 20 years 18,633,527
Total expected payments P=90,732,281

The average duration of the defined retirement benefits liability as at December 31, 2023 and
2022 are 7.77 years and 5.69 years, respectively.
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20. Income Taxes

Current income tax
The details of provision for current income tax are as follows:

2023 2022 2021
MCIT P=130,006 P=495,121 P=106,807
Final taxes 1,849,818 432,100 572,857

P=1,979,824 P=927,221 P=679,664

The reconciliation of provision for (benefit from) income tax computed using the statutory income tax
rate with provision for (benefit from) income tax in the consolidated statements of income is as
follows:

2023 2022 2021
(Provision for) benefit from

income tax computed at the
statutory income tax rate P=16,478,717 (P=80,027,237) (P=6,457,819)

Add (deduct) tax effect of:
Nontaxable income 19,807,485 (25,220,993) 17,220,465
Nondeductible expenses (4,790,346) 2,778,240 (1,308,000)
Income subjected to final tax 2,601,629 (1,507,727) 1,831,984
Final taxes (1,849,818) 432,100 (572,857)

 Expired portion of excess
MCIT over RCIT (211,123) 737,289 (220,137)

 Expired Net operating loss
carry-over (NOLCO) – 58,757,490 –

 Movement in unrecognized
deferred tax assets (64,073,087) 24,826,230 –

(Provision for) benefit from
income tax P=32,036,543 (P=19,224,608) P=10,493,636

Deferred income tax
Net deferred income tax assets represent the following:

2023 2022
Deferred income tax assets on:

NOLCO P=122,372,638 P=75,058,176
Provision for impairment on deferred oil and gas

exploration cost 83,730,695 105,938,706
Provision for P&A costs 7,687,237 8,591,740
Unamortized past service cost 7,213,577 6,810,994
Provision for impairment of receivables 5,230,049 5,230,049
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 3,262,584 1,979,160
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 731,934 813,051

Deferred income tax liabilities on:
Retirement benefits recognized in profit or loss (14,007,029) (13,716,069)
Decommissioning asset (2,068,308) (3,236,377)
Unrealized forex gain (32,133) (7,364,553)

Deferred tax assets recognized in profit or loss 214,121,244 180,104,877
Deferred income tax assets recognized in OCI

Retirement benefits recognized in OCI 14,304,121 14,171,604
P=228,425,365 P=194,276,481
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The Group unrecognized deferred income tax assets on the following temporary differences relating
to deferred oil and gas exploration costs and property and equipment which were written off in 2023:

2023 2022
SWAN Block (Note 11) P=– P=99,392,028
SC14-D Retention Block (Note 8) – 33,319,617

P=– P=132,711,645

Details of the Group’s NOLCO and excess MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future
taxable income and future income tax due are as follows:

NOLCO MCIT
Year incurred Year of Expiry Amount Year of Expiry Amount
2020 2025 P=195,497,024 2023 P=211,123
2021 2026 90,194,455 2024 106,807
2022 2025 14,541,223 2025 495,121
2023 2026 189,325,137 2026 130,006

489,557,839 943,057
Expired during the year – (211,123)

P=489,557,839 P=731,934

21. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction, other than in forced
or liquidation sale.

The carrying amounts of financial assets (except financial assets at FVOCI and advances to a related
party) and financial liabilities approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature.
Financial assets at FVOCI are carried at fair value based on the quoted values of the securities.
Advances to a related party are long-term and interest-bearing, thus, fair value is equal to the carrying
value.

Fair Value Hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy as follows:

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Asset measured at fair value:
 Financial assets at FVOCI P=52,379,640 P=4,250,000 P=– P=56,629,640

2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Asset measured at fair value:

Financial assets at FVOCI P=66,232,048 P=3,400,000 P=– P=69,632,048

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3
fair value measurement.
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22. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments are comprised mainly of cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, financial assets at FVOCI, other noncurrent assets, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities (except withholding taxes) and dividends payable.  The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to provide financing for the Group’s operations and capital-intensive projects.  The
BOD is mainly responsible for the overall risk management approach and for the approval of risk
strategies and principles of the Group.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, and
market risks.  The market risks exposure of the Group can be further classified to foreign currency
risk and equity price risk.  The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing some of these
risks and they are summarized as follows:

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of the Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  The Group’s transactional currency exposures arise
from cash and cash equivalents and receivables.  The Group’s foreign currency-denominated
monetary assets as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 follow:

2023 2022

US$
Peso

Equivalent US$
Peso

Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) $6,801,212 P=376,583,108 $6,059,876 P=337,868,375
Receivables (Note 5) 1,017,889 56,360,514 1,093,150 60,948,554
Monetary assets $7,819,101 P=432,943,622 $7,153,026 P=398,816,929

In translating the foreign currency-denominated financial instruments into Philippine peso amounts,
the exchange rates used are US$1.0 to P=55.37 and P=55.76 to $1.00 as at December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s income before income tax (solely
from foreign currency revaluation) to a reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rate, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax due to changes in the
carrying value of financial assets and liabilities.  The sensitivity range is based on the historical
volatility of the foreign exchange rate for the past year.  The analysis is based on the assumption that
last year’s foreign currency rate volatility will be the same in the following year.

Movement in Foreign
Exchange Rate

Increase (Decrease)

Effect on Income
Before Income Tax

2023 1% P=53,993
(1%) (53,993)

2022 1% P=701,722
(1%) (701,722)

Foreign currency risk has no other impact on the Group’s equity other than through profit or loss.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties failed to
discharge their contractual obligations.  With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Group, which comprise of cash in banks, short-term investments, receivables, financial
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assets at FVOCI and advances to related parties, the Group’s exposure to credit risk could arise from
default of the counterparty.

The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties.

The table below summarizes the Group’s gross maximum credit risk exposure from its financial
instruments.  These amounts are gross of collateral and credit enhancements, but net of any amounts
offset and allowance for impairment losses:

2023 2022
Amortized costs:

Cash in banks and cash equivalents P=395,520,788 P=381,713,821
Receivables 237,494,304 241,643,133

 Decommissioning fund under
“Other noncurrent assets” – 10,104,179

Financial assets at FVOCI 56,629,640 69,632,048
P=689,644,732 P=703,093,181

In determining the credit risk exposure, the Group has established probability of default rates based on
available credit ratings published by third-party credit rating agencies.  The credit ratings already
considered the forward-looking information.  When a counterparty does not have published credit
ratings, the Group benchmarks the credit ratings of comparable companies, adjusted to account for the
difference in size and other relevant metrics.

While these financial assets are also subject to the impairment requirements of PFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

The aging analysis of financial assets follows:

2023
Days Past Due

More than
Current 60 Days 180 Days 180 Days ECL Total

Cash and cash equivalents* P=395,520,788 P=− P=− P=− P=− P=395,520,788
Receivables:

Advances to related parties 224,370,000 − − 1,376,801 4,753,762 230,500,563
Accrued interest 3,508,411 681,627 1,340,955 5,566,600 16,166,436 27,264,029
Others 284,835 − − 365,075 − 649,910

Financial assets at FVOCI 56,629,640 − − − − 56,629,640
P=680,313,674 P=681,627 P=1,340,955 P=7,308,476 P=20,920,198 P=710,564,930

*Excluding cash on hand of P=24,430

2022
Days Past Due

More than
Current 60 Days 180 Days 180 Days ECL Total

Cash and cash equivalents* P=381,713,821 P=− P=− P=− P=− P=381,713,821
Receivables:

Advances to related parties 224,755,000 − − 1,376,802 4,753,762 230,885,564
Accrued interest 2,871,864 681,627 1,340,955 4,884,077 16,166,436 25,944,959
Others 5,732,808 − − − − 5,732,808

Other noncurrent assets 10,104,179 − − − − 10,104,179
Financial assets at FVOCI 69,632,048 − − − − 69,632,048

P=694,809,720 P=681,627 P=1,340,955 P=6,260,879 P=20,920,198 P=724,013,379
*Excluding cash on hand of P=25,576

The table below shows the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets based on their historical
experience with the corresponding debtors.
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Credit risk under general approach

2023
General Approach

TotalStage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Cash and cash equivalents* P=395,520,788 P=− P=− P=395,520,788
Receivables:

Advances to related parties 225,746,802 − 4,753,762 230,500,564
Accrued interest 11,097,593 − 16,166,436 27,264,029
Others 649,909 − − 649,909

Financial assets at FVOCI 56,629,640 − − 56,629,640
P=689,644,732 P=‒ P=20,920,198 P=653,935,290

*Excluding cash on hand of P=24,430

2022
General Approach Total

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Cash and cash equivalents* P=381,713,821 P=− P=− P=381,713,821
Receivables:

Advances to related parties 226,131,802 − 4,753,762 230,885,564
Accrued interest 9,778,523 − 16,166,436 25,944,959
Others 5,732,808 − − 5,732,808

Other noncurrent assets 10,104,179 − − 10,104,179
Financial assets at FVOCI 69,632,048 − − 69,632,048

P=703,093,181 P=‒ P=20,920,198 P=724,013,379
*Excluding cash on hand of P=25,576

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due under normal and stress circumstances.  The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and operating cash flows.  The
Group addresses liquidity concerns primarily through cash flows from operations and short-term
borrowings.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments and financial assets that are used to manage the liquidity risk of
the Group.

2023
Less than

three months
Three to

twelve months
More than

twelve months Total
Financial liabilities
 Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities* (P=8,300,166) P=‒ P=– (P=8,300,166)
Dividends payable (33,126,610) – – (33,126,610)

(P=41,426,776) P=‒ P=‒ (P=41,426,776)
*Excluding government payables

2023
Less than

three months
Three to

twelve months
More than

twelve months Total
Financial assets
 Cash on hand and in

 banks and cash
equivalents P=395,520,788 P=– P=– P=395,520,788

 Receivables 237,494,304 – 20,920,198 258,414,502
 Financial assets at

FVOCI 56,629,640 56,629,640
P=689,644,732 P=‒ P=20,920,198 P=710,564,930
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2022
Less than

three months
Three to

twelve months
More than

twelve months Total
Financial liabilities
 Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities* (P=12,374,242) P=‒ P=– (P=12,374,242)
Dividends payable (33,126,610) – – (33,126,610)

(P=45,500,852) P=‒ P=‒ (P=45,500,852)
*Excluding government payables

2022
Less than

three months
Three to

twelve months
More than

twelve months Total
Financial assets
 Cash on hand and in

 banks and cash
equivalents P=381,713,821 P=– P=– P=381,713,821

 Receivables 241,643,133 – 20,920,198 262,563,331
Other noncurrent assets 10,104,179 10,104,179

 Financial assets at
FVOCI 69,632,048 69,632,048

P=703,093,181 P=‒ P=20,920,198 P=724,013,379

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2023
January 1 Cash flows Others December 31

Dividends P=33,126,610 P=‒ P=‒ P=33,126,610

2022
January 1 Cash flows Others December 31

Dividends P=33,129,215 (P=2,605) P=‒ P=33,126,610

2021
January 1 Cash flows Others December 31

Dividends P=33,137,735 (P=8,520) P=‒ P=33,129,215

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss to future earnings, to fair values or to future cash flows that may result
from changes in the price of a financial instrument.  The value of a financial instrument may change
as a result of changes in foreign currency exchanges rates and equity price.

Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of investments in quoted equity securities could
decrease as a result of changes in the prices of equity indices and the value of individual stocks. The
Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group, which are
classified in the consolidated statements of financial position as financial assets at FVOCI.

The following table shows the sensitivity of the Group’s equity (through OCI) from changes in the
carrying value of the Group’s financial assets at FVOCI due to reasonably possible changes in the
Philippine Stock Exchange index (PSEi), with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s equity
(through OCI) due to changes in the carrying value of the Group’s financial assets at FVOCI.  The
analysis links PSEi changes, which proxies for general market movements, to individual stock prices
through the adjusted betas of each individual stock.  Betas are coefficients depicting the sensitivity of
individual prices to market movements.
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The sensitivity range is based on the historical volatility of the PSEi for the past year.  The analysis is
based on the assumption that last year’s PSEi volatility will be the same in the following year.

Percentage Change in PSEi Effect on Equity
2023 +14.03% P=2,784,123

-14.03% (2,784,123)
2022 +20.58% P=10,524,267

-20.58% (10,524,267)

The impact of equity price risk on the Group’s equity excludes the impact on transactions affecting
profit or loss.

23. Capital Management

The Group maintains a capital base to cover risks inherent in the business.  The primary objective of
the Group’s capital management is to optimize the use and the earnings potential of the Group’s
resources, ensuring that the Group complies with externally imposed, legal or contractual, capital
requirements, if any, and considering changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the Group’s activities.

No significant changes have been made in the objectives, policies and processes of the Group from
the previous years. In addition, there were no restrictions as to the capital of the Group.

The following table summarizes the total capital considered by the Group:

2023 2022
Capital stock P=1,743,479,943 P=1,743,479,943
Additional paid-in capital from sale of treasury

shares 1,624,012 1,624,012
Net unrealized loss on decline in value of available-

for-sale financial assets (54,017,010) (41,014,602)
Share in other comprehensive income of associate 55,925,308 55,497,116
Remeasurement of Retirement in OCI (42,912,363) (42,514,811)
Retained earnings 935,915,659 969,793,983

P=2,640,015,549 P=2,686,865,641

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and its financial position.  This ratio is calculated as total
debt divided by total equity.  Debt pertains to accounts payable and other current liabilities.  Equity
comprises all components of equity.

The Group’s debt-to-equity ratios are as follows:

2023 2022
Total liabilities P=73,823,258 P=82,047,982
Equity 2,640,015,549 2,686,865,641
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 0.03:1 0.03:1
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24. Segment Information

Currently, the Group has 2 business segments.  The Parent Company is primarily involved in oil
exploration and production while PPC, pre-operating segment, is primarily engaged in production,
supply, trading and generation of electric power using various energy sources.  Revenue generated
consists solely of revenue from petroleum operations.  Other income is derived from equity in net
earnings of associates.  PPC has not yet started commercial operation since its incorporation
therefore, expenses were only incurred during the year.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.  The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
President and Chairman of the Parent Company who makes strategic decisions.

2023
Oil and Gas Power Elimination Total

Consolidated revenue
External customers P=203,591,907 P=– P=– P=203,591,907
Share in costs and operating expenses (138,678,431) – – (138,678,431)
General and administrative expenses (56,133,530) (66,658) – (56,200,188)

(194,811,961) (66,658) – (194,878,619)
Provision for impairment losses on:

Deferred oil and gas
exploration costs (57,302,287) – – (57,302,287)

Investment in associate (4,173,138) – – (4,173,138)
Share in net income of associates 13,323,123 – – 13,323,123
Dividend income 1,288,859 – – 1,288,859
Foreign exchange gains - net 757,610 – – 757,610
Other charges – net (720,483) (633) – (721,116)
Loss before interest, taxes, depreciation

and depletion (38,046,370) (67,291) – (38,113,661)
Interest income 26,927,701 – – 26,927,701
Interest expense (2,053,168) – – (2,053,168)
Depreciation and depletion (52,675,739) – – (52,675,739)
Loss before income tax (65,847,576) (67,291) – (65,914,867)
Benefit from income tax 32,036,543 – – 32,036,543
Net Loss (P=33,811,033) (P=67,291) P=– (P=33,878,324)
Segment assets P=2,722,773,882 P=8,373,081 (P=17,308,156) P=2,713,838,807
Segment liabilities (P=82,149,299) (P=47,040) P=8,373,081 (P=73,823,258)
Depreciation, depletion, and

amortization P=52,675,739 P=– P=– P=52,675,739
Other disclosures:

Investment in associates
Capital expenditure

P=903,592,135
25,858,514

P=–
–

P=–
–

P=903,592,135
25,858,514

2022
Oil and Gas Power Elimination Total

Consolidated revenue
External customers P=237,488,580 P=– P=– P=237,488,580
Share in costs and operating expenses (105,403,947) – – (105,403,947)
General and administrative expenses (64,854,911) (67,440) – (64,922,351)

(170,258,858) (67,440) – (170,326,298)
Provision for unrecoverable deferred oil

and gas (423,754,823) – – (423,754,823)
Foreign exchange gains – net 40,613,540 – – 40,613,540
Share in net income of associates 33,162,913 – – 33,162,913
Dividend income 1,263,730 – – 1,263,730

(Forward)
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2022
Oil and Gas Power Elimination Total

Gain on sale of investment P=– P=– P=– P=‒
Other charges – net (3,414,484) (6,405) – (3,420,889)
Loss before interest, taxes, depreciation,

and depletion (284,899,402) (73,845) – (284,973,247)
Interest income 15,705,047 – –  15,705,047
Interest expense (2,578,786) (2,578,786)
Depreciation and depletion (48,261,960) – – (48,261,960)
Loss before income tax (320,035,101) (73,845) – (320,108,946)
Provision for income tax (19,224,608) – – (19,224,608)
Net loss (P=339,259,709) (P=73,845) P=– (P=339,333,554)
Segment assets P=2,777,848,697 P=8,424,689 (P=17,359,763) P=2,768,913,623
Segment liabilities (P=90,441,311) (P=31,360) P=8,424,689 (P=82,047,982)
Other disclosures:

Investment in associates
Capital expenditure

P=899,335,155
29,057,364

P=–
–

P=–
–

P=899,335,155
29,057,364

25. Events after the Reporting Period

Application for a new SC - SC-6B Bonita-Cadlao
On December 7, 2023, the DOE issued the Department Circular DC2023-12-0033, which governs the
awarding of Petroleum SC for DPPSC for expiring SCs to promote full maximization and exhaustion
of the producible petroleum reserves based on the POD approved by the DOE.

The JV partners through Nido, submitted a Letter of intent for DPPSC application on
January 5, 2024, which was followed by DPPSC application submitted on January 26, 2024.

As at March 19, 2024, the Group has not received the approval from the DOE.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
The Philodrill Corporation
8th Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum
125 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of The Philodrill Corporation and Subsidiary (the Group) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023 and have issued our report thereon
dated March 19, 2024.  Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.  The schedules listed in the Index to the Supplementary Schedules
are the responsibility of the Group’s management.  These schedules are presented for purposes of
complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not part of the basic
consolidated financial statements.  These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all
material respects, the financial information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Editha V. Estacio
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 91269
Tax Identification No. 178-486-845
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-094-2023, March 28, 2023, valid until March 27, 2026
PTR No. 10079934, January 5, 2024, Makati City

March 19, 2024

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

 Tel: (632) 8891 0307
Fax: (632) 8819 0872
ey.com/ph

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL
SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
The Philodrill Corporation
8th Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum
125 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of The Philodrill Corporation and Subsidiary (the Group) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023 and have issued our report thereon
dated March 19, 2024.  Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.  The Supplementary Schedule of Financial Soundness
Indicators, including their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the
intended users, are the responsibility of the Group’s management.  These financial soundness indicators
are not measures of operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs)
and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies.  This schedule is
presented for the purpose of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs.  The components of these financial soundness indicators
have been traced to the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, and no material exceptions were
noted.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Editha V. Estacio
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 91269
Tax Identification No. 178-486-845
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-094-2023, March 28, 2023, valid until March 27, 2026
PTR No. 10079934, January 5, 2024, Makati City

March 19, 2024

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

 Tel: (632) 8891 0307
Fax: (632) 8819 0872
ey.com/ph

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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SCHEDULE I

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

As of December 31, 2023

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION
8th Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum, 125 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong City

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning of reporting period P=529,357,799

Add/Less: Net Income (loss) for the current year (37,639,825)

Less: Category C.1: Unrealized income recognized in the profit
or loss during the reporting period (net of tax)

Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of dividends
declared

–

Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to
cash and cash equivalents

(128,531)

Unrealized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains) of
   financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL) –
Unrealized fair value gain of Investment Property –
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings

as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the     PFRS –
Subtotal (128,531)

Add: Category C.2: Unrealized income recognized in the profit
or loss in prior reporting periods but realized in the current
reporting period (net of tax)

Realized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to Cash
and cash equivalents 29,458,213

Realized fair value adjustments (mark-to-market gains) of financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) –

Realized fair value gain on Investment Property –
Other realized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings as a

result of certain transactions accounted under PFRS –
Subtotal 29,458,213

Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should be excluded
from the determination of the amount of available for
dividends distribution

Net movement of treasury shares (except for reacquisition of
redeemable shares) –

Net movement of deferred tax assets not considered in the
reconciling items under the previous categories

(26,420,381)

Net movement in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities
related to same transaction (263,567)

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP – gain (loss) –
Others –

(26,683,948)
Total Retained Earnings, end of the reporting period available

for dividend  P=494,363,708



SCHEDULE II

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
PURSUANT TO THE REVISED SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Below are the financial ratios that are relevant to the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023, 2022
and 2021:

Formula 2023 2022 2021
Profitability Ratios:
 Return on assets Net income/(loss)

Total assets

(33,878,324)
2,713,838,807

(1.25%) (12.26%) 1.17%

 Return on equity Net income/(loss)
Total equity

(33,878,324)
2,640,015,549

(1.28%) (12.63%) 1.21%

 Gross profit margin Gross Profit: (Share in petroleum
revenue– share in costs and operating

expenses – depletion expense)
Share in petroleum revenue

12,237,737
203,591,907

6.01% 35.30% 7.90%

 Net profit margin Income (loss) before income tax
Share in petroleum revenue

(65,914,867)
203,591,907

(32.38%) (134.75%) 12.47%

Liquidity Ratios:
 Current ratio Current assets

Current liabilities

700,128,985
41,885,938

16.72:1.00 14.95:1.00 15.81:1.00

 Quick ratio Cash and cash equivalents + receivables
Current liabilities

633,039,522
41,885,938

15.11. :1.00 13.59:1.00 15.17:1.00
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Formula 2023 2022 2021
Financial Leverage Ratios:
 Asset to equity ratio Total assets

  Total equity

2,713,838,807
  2,640,015,549

1.03:1.00 1.03:1.00 1.03:1.00

 Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities
Total equity

73,823,258
2,640,015,549

0.03:1.00 0.03:1.00 0.03:1.00



SCHEDULE III

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE

COMPANIES WITHIN THE GROUP
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2023

PentaCapital
Holdings, Inc.

(Associate)
13.21%

The Philodrill Corporation
(Parent Company; Reporting Company)

Philodrill
Power

Corporation
(Subsidiary)

100%

PentaCapital
Investment

Corporation
(Associate)

40%

Atlas
Consolidated
Mining and

Development
Corporation
(Associate)

0.53%
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